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NOTICE OF CRIMINAL COMPLAINT 
 
To: County of Skagit 
County of Skagit Auditor 
P.O. Box 1306  
Mount Vernon WA, 98273 
 
April 9, 2024 
 
I, _______________________________, a concerned citizen and One of We the People, am 
writing to bring to your attention a series of grave concerns regarding the governance of Skagit 
County, Washington. It is imperative that immediate action be taken to address the following issues, 
which have serious legal and ethical implications: 

• On or about 2019 February Skagit County Special Election Review was made by the 
Secretary of the State of Washington [found at 
https://img1.wsimg.com/blobby/go/39d6f76e-c6b0-4dd9-a6b7-
1fd799ca34ea/downloads/2019%20-
%20Skagit%202019%20Election%20Review.pdf?ver=1657829048975] detailing several 
violations and infractions by the Skagit County Canvasing Board, including but not limited 
to: 

1. Skagit County Elections was unable to provide a provisional ballot packet. The County 
violated HAVA by failing to ensure that provisional ballots were available National Voter 
Registration Act (NVRA) and the Help America Vote Act of 2002 (HAVA). 

2. Skagit County Elections does not have a Canvassing Board member oath of office. The oath 
required is similar to the one taken by county auditors and deputy auditors in the 
performance of their duties. Skagit County Elections must obtain an oath from each of the 
canvassing board members prior to canvassing the yearly elections. 

3. All Skagit County Canvassing Board meetings are subject to the requirements of open public 
meetings 

4. The Skagit County Auditor’s office does not post Canvassing Board meeting information on 
its website. In addition to the published Notice of Election, each Canvassing Board Meeting 
date, time, and location must be posted on the county website. 

5. The Skagit County Canvassing Board meeting minutes did not include required information 
such as time and location of the meeting, administrative motions made, or the time 
adjourned. The Skagit County Canvassing Board must provide clear and concise minutes 
that include information discussed, documents reviewed, and any decisions made regarding 
ballot rejection as a board. 

6. Skagit County Elections was not able to produce a current Canvassing Board Manual. The 
County Canvassing Board is required to have a manual which must include at a minimum: 
a. Written procedures regarding the conduct of a recount 
b. Scenarios for when ballots are to be duplicated 

The manual must be updated and officially adopted by the Canvassing Board at a public 
meeting. The date of adoption must be included in the manual. The Canvassing Board 
should review the manual on a regular basis. 
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7. Skagit County Elections does not contact new military and overseas voters to determine how 
they want to receive all future ballots. Skagit County Elections must offer these voters the 
option to receive their ballots either by mail, fax, or email as soon as possible after the 
registration is received if a military or overseas voter did not provide that information on the 
registration form. 

An individual personating County of Skagit Auditor, hereinafter, Auditor, did answer the 
Washington Secretary of State’s  Skagit County Election Procedures Review | 2019 Special Election, 
August 2019. 

• On or about August 1, 2019, Auditor claiming she knew of the defects and would attempt to 
correct them. As of the date of this Complaint, only one canvasing Board Meeting has been 
held since the 2019 notice. The Skagit Canvasing Board meets regularly without noticing the 
public, violating the Public Meetings Act, (RCW 42.30.030 Meetings declared open and 
public. (1) All meetings of the governing body of a public agency shall be open and public 
and all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the governing body of a public 
agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter.) failing to inform the public or allow 
the public to participate. None of the items pointed out by the WA Secretary of State in the 
2019 Review have been corrected. 
 

• On or about January 3, 2023, at the Skagit County Board Of Commissioners’ Meeting, 
Tuesday, January 3, 2023, a candidate elect, an individual personating Auditor, failed to file 
and record the VOUCHERS AND WARRANTS as approved by the Auditor, which is the 
Clerk of the Commissioners duty… violating RCW 36.22.010 (6). 

“11:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. Consent Agenda, Vouchers, Warrants, and Miscellaneous Items 

a. Vouchers audited and certified by the auditing officer as required by R.C.W. 42.24.080, and 

those expense reimbursement claims certified as required by R.C.W. 42.24.090, have been 

recorded on a listing, which has been made available to the Board…” The Auditor was not present for this 
event and did not file a certified copy of this meeting. 

 

• On or about On or before March, 2023, an individual personating County of Skagit Auditor, 
gave her employee instructions and destroyed election video and data from the General election, 
violating U.S.C. § 20701. Second, Section 302 of The Civil Rights Act of 1960, now codified at 52 
U.S.C. §§ 20701-20706, governs certain “[f]ederal election records.” Section 301 of the Act requires state 
and local election officials to “retain and preserve” all records relating to any “act requisite 
to voting” for twenty-two months after the conduct of “any general, special, or primary election” at 
which citizens vote for “President, Vice President, presidential elector, 
 

• On or before January 3, 2023, a candidate elect, an individual personating County of Skagit 
Auditor, did intrude upon the office of Auditor and failed to file her Oath of Office and 
Bond for that office before her first official act. Auditor’s office was vacated the moment 
she performed her first official act through neglect or intent to file her Oath of office with 
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the Skagit County Auditor and her bond with the Skagit County Clerk, violating the Duties 
of the Auditor, RCW 36.22.010 (6). 

According to RCW 42.12.010 Causes of vacancy. (6) His or her refusal or neglect to take his or her oath of office, 
or to give or renew his or her official bond, or to deposit such oath or bond within the time prescribed by law. As 
OWTP, I do object to this lawless action by a private citizen individual personating Auditor. 

• On or about January 4, 2023, a candidate elect, an individual personating County of Skagit 
Auditor performed an official act violating RCW 29A.60.280 29A.04.133, when the Auditor 
and her unauthorized deputy auditor, did authenticate filed Certificate 202301040033 on the 
4th day of January, 2023, at 2:10 PM almost a month before her bond was filed on February 
1, 2023, and her oath of Office is still not filed. 

(3) For elective offices governed by this section, the oath of office must be taken as the last step of 
qualification as defined in RCW 29A.04.133  

• On or about TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023, Auditor failed within fifteen days after the 
adjournment of each regular session, to publish a summary of the proceedings of the 
legislative authority at such term, in any newspaper published in the county… violating RCW 
36.22.020. The Auditor was not present for this event and did not file a certified copy of this 
meeting. 
 

• On or about January 23, 2023, Auditor failed to file or publish within fifteen days the record 
of this Commissioners meeting. The Auditor was not present for this event. 
 

• In the month of January 2023, an individual personating Auditor did as a private citizen, 
personate a public official, violating, RCW 42.20.030 Intrusion into and refusal to surrender 
public office. 

Every person who shall falsely personate or represent any public officer, or who shall willfully intrude himself or herself 
into a public office to which he or she has not been duly elected or appointed, or who shall willfully exercise any of the 
functions or perform any of the duties of such officer, without having duly qualified therefor,...shall be guilty of a gross 
misdemeanor, when she failed to surrender the Auditor’s office after receiving the ousting letter from 
the newly elected Auditor elect. I as OWTP, do object to this lawless action by a private citizen 
personating Auditor and demand that these personations of an official and crimes committed by 
same be reported to the lawful authorities to receive said complaints. 

• On or about TUESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2023, an individual personating Auditor as a 
private citizen did personate a public official and violate RCW 42.24.090 by failing to file and 
record Vouchers, Warrants claimed to be approved by audit and certification. The Auditor 
was not present for this event. 
 

• On or about November 7, 2023, an individual or employee of personating Auditor, did 
attempt to prevent five candidates from filing their Washington State Declaration of Write-
in Candidacy, by demanding that the Write-in Candidates “take Back their Declarations 
because the Auditor would only shred them!” The Auditor has refused to file the 5 
Declarations. 
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• At the next Skagit County Canvasing Board Meeting, where votes were still being counted, 
an observer asked if the Auditor was going to count the votes of the Write-in Candidates 
and she said NO.” Violating 52 USC 10307, Prohibited acts, (a) Failure or refusal to permit 
casting or tabulation of vote, (b) Intimidation, threats, or coercion, 
 

I as One of We The People object to the continued lawlessness of an individual personating  
Auditor and revoke my consent to be governed by a private citizen who will not protect my 
Constitutional and God-Given Rights. 

For fear that my letter will be overlooked I am reporting a crime pursuant to Misprision of a 
Felony 18 U.S. Code § 4; Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony 
cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as soon as possible make 
known the same to some judge or other person in civil or military authority under the United 
States, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned…it is now your duty to report these crimes to 
the appropriate judge, Department of Justice, or military authority. 

CONCLUSION: As of the date of this letter, there is NO AUTHORIZED 
GOVERNMENT IN SKAGIT COUNTY WASHINGTON. The Affiant has been harmed 
by officials under color of law. 

RCW 36.22.010 Duties of auditor. The county auditor: (6) As clerk of the board of county 
commissioners, shall: 

• Record all of the proceedings of the legislative authority; 
 

• Make full entries of all of their resolutions and decisions on all questions concerning the 
raising of money for and the allowance of accounts against the county; as per RCW 
65.04.080. There are no official meeting minutes, resolutions, Bonds, or Oaths of Office 
filed in the Auditor’s office as per the RCWs quoted in this Criminal Complaint. This cannot 
be a Dereliction of Duty as the office has been vacated for at least a year. The crime is a 
clear case of embezzlement. RCW 42.20.070 Misappropriation and falsification of accounts 
by public officer. 

The entire Canvassing Board of County of Skagit, including the Auditor, the Prosecuting Attorney, 
all Skagit County Commissioners, and the Sheriff have failed to file their Oath of Office and/or 
Bond at the appropriate place within the designated time before performing their 1st official acts, 
therefore, all of these Offices within the County of Skagit were vacated January 3, 2023. All 
unofficial acts performed by imposters imposing upon the office are void ab initio. 

• If a candidate for vacated office is not suggested by the County Commissioners or the 
Governor within 60 days of the vacated office then We the People may elect 
replacements at the next general election. [No replacements were offered by either]. 
Washington State Constitution) A public notice of vacant positions was published in the 
Skagit Valley Herald on March 21, 2023, SVH-347414, and replacements were elected 
for two Commissioners, the Auditor and the Sheriff, in the November 2023 election. 
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Pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Washington Article II Section 15, there was 
a General Election Conducted on November 7, 2023, and the personating Auditor’s 
replacement was elected. Pursuant to RCW 42.20.030: A letter of ousting was sent, on 
January 11, 2024, Intrusion into and refusal to surrender public office, is the status of the 
individual personating Auditor. 

• We now have a vacated office of Auditor with two unauthorized Deputy auditors that 
are corrupting the recordings and filings that the bona fide Auditor would perform. 

Private citizen employees of the County of Skagit have overthrown the elected government of 
County of Skagit. In light of these egregious violations, I hereby request that you take immediate 
steps to rectify the situation. Specifically, I urge you to report these crimes to the proper 
authorities for criminal investigation and ensure that the individuals responsible are held 
accountable under the law.  

Please report the crimes listed herein to the proper authorities and reply to Affiant below that 
you have performed your duty to report these crimes. 
Sincerely, 

Sworn Statement patterned per 28 U.S.C. 1746 (1): 
“I declare under pain and penalty of perjury under the laws of the (organic) United 

States of America that the foregoing is true and correct.  
 

With All Rights Reserved, 
 

     
    
(Signature):______________________________            _____________________     

 Affiant/Witness/Victim,      Date        
UCC 1-308 without prejudice 

 
(Address) 
 _________________________ 
 
 _________________________ 
  

_________________________ 
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CC:  
United States House Oversight 
Committee,  
Chairman James Comer,  
2157 Rayburn House Building,  
Washington, DC 20515, 
 
U.S. Election Assistance Commission, 
(HAVA), 
Ben Hovland,  
633 3rd Street NW, Suite 200, 
Washington, DC 20001 
 
Federal Election Commission,  
Allen Dickerson,  
1050 First Street, NE,  
Washington, DC 20463 
 

Robert Heberle (PIN) 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Criminal Division 

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 

Washington, DC 20530-0001 
 
 
Office of Inspector General,  
Christi A. Grimm,  
Independence Avenue, SW 
Washington, DC 20201 
 
U S Attorney General  
Merrick Garland,  
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.  
Washington, DC 20530 
 
Western District of Washington, U.S. 
Attorney 
Tessa M. Gorman,  
700 Stewart Street, Suite 5220,  
Seattle, WA 98101-1271 
 
Robert Ferguson,  
WA Attorney General 
P O Box 40100  
Olympia, WA 98504 

 
Steve Hobbs,  
WA Secretary of State 
P O Box 40220,  
Olympia, WA 98504-0220 
 
Sam Low 
P.O. Box 40600  
Olympia, WA 98504 
 
Carolyn Eslick 
PO Box 40600  
Olympia, WA 98504-0600 
 
David Keenan CivilLA Oversight Com. 
PO Box 41183.  
Olympia, WA 98504-1183 
 
County of Skagit Prosecuting Attorney 
605 S. 3rd,  
Mount Vernon WA 98273 
 
Skagit Commissioner Dist.1,  
1800 Continental Pl,  
Mount Vernon WA 98273 
 
Skagit Commissioner Dist. 2 
1800 Continental Pl,  
Mount Vernon WA 98273 
 
Skagit Commissioner Dist. 3,  
1800 Continental Pl,  
Mount Vernon WA 98273 
 
County of Skagit Auditor 
P.O. Box 1306  
Mount Vernon WA 98273 
 
County of Skagit Sheriff 
600 S. 3rd St.,  
Mount Vernon WA 98273 
 
Presiding Judge, Skagit Superior Ct. 
205 W Kincaid St Ste 202,  
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

https://www.fec.gov/about/leadership-and-structure/allen-dickerson/

